
CITY OF CLAREMONT  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA PACKET 
 

 
 
 

February 6, 2012 
Claremont City Hall  
Council Chambers  

7:00 pm 



           

 

 CITY OF CLAREMONT  

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Regular Meeting  

February 6, 2012  

7:00 PM 

Claremont City Hall, Council Chambers   

 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. MAYOR’S REPORT  

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA  

 

A. Regular Meeting Minutes – January 3, 2012   

B. Closed Session Minutes  –  January 3, 2012  

 

6. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 

 

7. PRESENTATION  

 

A.   Catawba County Economic Development Corporation- Claremont Update  

B.   Claremont Police Department 2011 Year in Review  

 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Budget Transfer  

B.  City of Claremont 2012 Action Plan  

   

10. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A. Youth Council Report 

B. Fire Department 

C. Police Department 

D. Public Works 

E. Rescue Squad  

F. Utilities Department  

G. Planning and Zoning 

H. Parks & Recreation Committee  

I. Appearance Committee 

 



“A progressive City dedicated to preserving small town values while planning for the future” 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

 

12. CLOSED SESSION 

 

13. ADJOURN 

 
City of Claremont Board & Committee Meetings 

 
City Council Meeting        March 5

th
             Council Chambers 7:00pm 

 1
st
 Monday of each month 

 

Planning Board   February 13
th

           Council Chambers 7:00 pm  

2
nd

 Monday of each month 

 

Appearance Committee   February 27
th

                  Claremont Library  6:00 pm  

4
th

 Monday of each month 

 

Parks & Recreation     February 27
th

   
 
          Claremont City Offices 7:00 pm 

4
th

 Monday of each month 

 

Youth Council     February 4
th

       Council Chambers 3:00 pm 

1
st
 Sunday of each month 

 

Friends of the Library    February 28
th

   Claremont Library 6:00 pm  

4
th

 Tuesday of each month 

 

Seniors Morning Out    February 15
th

            1
st
 Baptist Fellowship Hall 8:30 am  

3
rd

 Wednesday of each month 

 

Claremont Tailgate Market     City Hall Parking Lot 3-6pm  

Every Friday Thru Sept. 24th 

 

 

NOTES: 





 

Tuesday, January 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, January 3, 2012 

 
The regular City Council meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the Council Chambers at City Hall at 
7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 3, 2012. 
 
The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor David Morrow, Mayor Pro 
Tem Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember Shawn Brown, Councilmember Nicky Setzer, Councilmember 
Dale Sherrill and Councilmember Dale Setzer. 
 
The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Manager, Doug Barrick, City 
Attorney, Bob Grant, Finance Officer, Stephanie Corn, Administrative Support Clerk, Mandy Buff, Police 
Chief, Gerald Tolbert, Police Captain, Gary Bost, Fire Chief, Gary Sigmon and Garrick Butts. 
 
Others in attendance were: Susan Tucker, Laurie LoCicero, Henry Helton, Melanie Starr, Robert Smith, 
Paul Christ, Cody Setzer, James Setzer, Gene Monday, Scott Ramsey, Ryan Smith, Sam Erwin and Nash 
Dunn. 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor David Morrow called the Claremont City Council meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.  
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was accepted as presented. 
 
3.  INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The invocation was led by Associate Pastor, Paul Christ from St. Mark's Lutheran Church in Claremont. 
Councilmember Dale Setzer led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4.  MAYOR'S REPORT 
 
Mayor David Morrow reported the Council and members of other departments went to the Public Works 
facility just before the Council meeting to look at the changes that have been made inside the facility. On 
December 10th at the Fire Department was the first Mayor's Planning Breakfast. The Council, City Manager, 
Mayor and some members from the Western Piedmont Council of Government discussed the plans for 
Claremont for the next 3 to 5 years. Plans are being made to have a joint reception with Claremont and 
Conover before the next Council meeting in February. 
 
 
 
 



 

Tuesday, January 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 2 of 6 

 
5.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. Regular Meeting Minutes – December 5, 2011- A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy 
Lowrance to accept the December 5, 2011 minutes as presented. Councilmember Shawn Brown seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
B. Closed Session Minutes – December 5, 2011 - A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy 
Lowrance to accept the December 5, 2011 closed session minutes as presented. Councilmember Shawn 
Brown seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
C. Mayor's Planning Breakfast Minutes – December 10, 2011 - A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem 
Timothy Lowrance to accept the December 10, 2011 Mayor's Planning Breakfast minutes as presented. 
Councilmember Shawn Brown seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
D. Fiscal Year 2012 - 2013 Budget Calendar - A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance 
to accept the fiscal year 2012-2013 budget calendar as presented. Councilmember Shawn Brown seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
6.  CITIZEN'S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS  
 
No one signed up or spoke. 
  
7.  PRESENTATION 
 
A. City of Claremont Fiscal Year 2011 Budget Audit - Melanie Starr stated the general fund is the major 
operating fund for the City of Claremont. The major revenue source for the general fund is ad valorem taxes 
collected by the Catawba County on behalf of the city.  The total revenues are as follows: 
 
Budget - $2,406,251 
Actual - $2,624,977 
Variance - $218,726 
2010 Actual* - $2,566,805     * 2010 restated change for General Capital Project Fund. 
 
Expenditures includes all department costs such as salaries and related benefits, supplies and materials, 
contracted services, travel and training, repairs and maintenance, capital outlay (as needed) and debt service. 
The total expenditures are as follows: 
 
Budget - $2,729,318 
Actual - $2,613,222 
Variance - $116,096 
2010 Actual* - $2,423,433     * 2010 restated change for General Capital Project Fund. 
 
The ending fund balance in the general fund at June 30, 2011 was $2,189,472. Of this fund balance, 
$273,451 is restricted fund balance, which is not available for appropriation in the budget. Restricted 
amounts include public safety at $7,775, transportation at $103,527 and stabilization for the state statute of 
$162,149. In the 2012 FY budget, $197,775 is budgeted as designated for subsequent year's budget and this 
amount is reported as assigned fund balance. Total assigned fund balance is $1,718,246. 
 



 

Tuesday, January 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 3 of 6 

The water & sewer fund is operated as an enterprise fund because the purpose of this fund is to account for 
services in which a charge is made to cover the cost of services. The beginning net assets for 2011 were 
$5,679,520 compared to 2010 which was $5,675,792. The ending net assets were $5,679,520 compared to 
2010 which was $5,659,592.  
 
With insightful planning for the future capital needs, the City is poised to maintain a very positive financial 
position. 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
At 7:33 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance made a motion to open the public hearing to discuss the 
Francis Sigman park PARTF grant. Councilmember Nicky Setzer seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
A. Francis Sigman Park PARTF Grant – Sam Erwin, Environmental Development Administrator for the 
WPCOG, stated the Parks and Recreation Trust Fund is about the only revenue that local Governments have 
for recreation funds in the state. There use to be the land and water fund that existed for years but that's 
pretty much gone. A few years ago when the economy was good the Parks and recreation trust Fund had 
about $14 million, last year they had $6 million and this year it's projected this year they'll have about $4 
million. We had 4 applicants last year. Two of them were funded. One them was Conover which had never 
been funded before. This year it looks like there will be two applicants. It's going to be limited funds this 
year but a lot of local governments have decided not to apply because they don't have the money to match. 
Other local governments are using sources like money that has been donated. The applications are due 
January 31st. In May, the Parks and Recreation trust Fund authority will meet and award grants based on the 
3rd quarter revenues they receive. They get a percentage of real estate taxes that's how they function. In July 
they will award grants based on the 1st and 2nd quarter of the 2012-2013 fiscal year. They have a scoring 
system and that plays a big part of it. They also look at the city's population and other local government's 
population. Then there's geographical distribution. They have a map of North Carolina that shows where 
every project that has been funded and what they do is try and even it out every year as best as they can. A 
lot of it depends on how much money the applicants are requesting. With the limited amount of money this 
year you can apply up to $500,000 but they may be looking at trying to spread it out as much as they can 
which would really help Claremont. Another thing they look at is if you have applied before and have never 
been funded. PARTF requires a 50% match and it has to be cash. The things we are looking at improving 
are providing a parking lot upgrade, three new handicap parking areas, two new concrete stairways, a new 
driveway, ball field improvements, a walking trail and restrooms. One thing that will improve your points is 
it is in you Capital Improvement Plan this year and it wasn't last year. If you have any questions I can try 
and answer them or pass them along to Henry. 
 
Jonathan Waters, Chair of the Adrian L. Shuford YMCA, stated I would like to see collaboration between 
the YMCA of Catawba Valley and Parks and Recreation as well as Claremont and the City of Conover. Our 
youth today deserve an outlet and if you haven't noticed technology is taking over. They need some outside 
time and they need to learn wisdom the way we learned wisdom. 
 
Tim Turner, President of the Claremont Optimist Club, would love to see the park project move forward. 
The Optimist Club doesn't have the means to develop the park and the additions will help. 
 



 

Tuesday, January 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 4 of 6 

Henry Helton stated he has several people interested in using the softball field. Some of the residents that 
live close to the park are interested in a walking trail. There are also some groups that want to have 
tournaments in the park. 
 
Robert Smith stated the Francis Sigman Park project has been in the works for 20 years. Francis Sigman 
loved children. The land was deeded to the Francis Sigman Foundation. In that deed it states if anything 
happens to the foundation or the Claremont Optimist Club the land goes to the City of Claremont. Mr. 
Sigman and many others have put a lot of time and work in to Francis Sigman Park. There are two major 
drain lines under the park. The land off to the side has been approved for bathrooms. The undeveloped land 
has a lease with the area farmers. 
 
At 7:55 p.m. a motion was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer to close the public hearing. The motion 
was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Ordinance 08-11 FY 2012 Budget Amendment – A motion was made by Councilmember Shawn 
Brown to accept ordinance 08-11 as presented. Councilmember Nicky Setzer seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
B. 2011-2012 PARTF Grant Application Approval – A motion was made by Councilmember Dale Setzer 
to approve the 2011-2012 PARTF grant application as presented. Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
11. DEPARMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
A.  Youth Council – Susan Tucker reported the Youth Council moved their meeting to Sunday, January 8th. 
She also reported the youth are very active and are coming up lots of ideas for the upcoming year. 
 
B.  Fire Department – Chief Gary Sigmon reported the Fire Department responded to 305 calls year to 
date. The average member response to calls was 8. The average response time to calls is 3 minutes 55 
seconds till the first engine was on the scene. The total training hours for the year is 4,386 for the 
department. There were 69 business inspections, 29 re-inspections, 10 safety inspections, 1 plan review and 
37 pre plans were completed for the year. 
 
C.  Police Department – Chief Gerald Tolbert reported officers made two arrests for unauthorized use of 
vehicles, investigated a report of a stolen vehicle from Pinocchio's Pizza which was later recovered by a 
Catawba County Sheriff's Deputy and officers made two arrests for shoplifting at Dollar General one of 
which included a resist and delay charge. 
 
D.  Public Works – Public Works Director Tom Winkler reported public works department jetted out and 
cleaned 948 feet of main sewer line on Lawrence Drive, 592 feet on Anderson Street, 589 feet on West 
Calvin Street and 767 feet on Pine Street. 
 



 

Tuesday, January 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 5 of 6 

E. Rescue Squad – Ryan Smith reported they had 50 total calls, 47 of the calls were emergency. He stated 
the last two weeks calls have been down. The gun raffle will start in January. 
 
F. Utilities Department – City Manager Barrick reported December was a successful month. The 
AdvancePierre Foods project has been finalized and the loan repayment should begin soon. A new dump 
truck has been ordered for the utility department. We will be sending out information on the liquid smoke to 
some of the residents in January. We are also preparing documents and reports for the FOG Ordinance 
implementation. 
 
G. Planning and Zoning – City Planner Laurie LoCicero reported an application came in for an 80 foot 
high rise sign at Carolina Coach & Camper and it has been approved. The Planning Board met in December 
to consider modification to 10/70 bonus permit that was issued to 2973 Kelly Blvd. (Williams Sonoma). The 
modification was approved to allow 65 more parking spaces. Laurie stated the Western Piedmont Council of 
Government is officially in their new building. 
 
H. Parks & Recreation – Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance reported they haven't their regular meeting 
yet. Some of the events that are planned for this year are Senior Citizen Breakfast, canasta, tailgate market, 
spring yard sale, spring hazardous waste collection, city wide Easter egg hunt, Memorial Day ceremony, 
Claremont Day, fall hazardous waste collection, Veterans Day Ceremony, and the 29th Annual Christmas 
Parade. 
 
Henry Helton stated the Boy Scout will work on Saturdays on the landscape around the Veterans Memorial. 
He took the Councils suggestions and revised his plan. The project has to be done by Memorial Day. 
 
I.  Appearance Committee – No report was given. 
 
12.  CITY MANAGER'S REPORT – City Manager Doug Barrick reported the new fiscal year budget 
planning process has begun. An action plan will be presented at February's City Council meeting. We can 
now accept credit/debit cards for water and sewer payments. The main antenna for the wireless internet is on 
top of City Hall and we hope to have the wireless internet available in the downtown area by the end of the 
month. City offices will be closed on January 16th to observe Martin Luther King Jr. Day. The budget retreat 
will be on February 25th. City Manager Barrick thanked the businesses in the downtown area for decorating 
at Christmas time. 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION – At 8:27 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance made a motion to go into 
closed session in reference to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) (Attorney-Client Privilege), G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 
(Personnel Matter) and G.S. 143-318.11(a)(4) (EDC Contract). Councilmember Shawn Brown seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
At 9:21 p.m. Councilmember Nicky Setzer made a motion to adjourn the closed session. Mayor Pro Tem 
Timothy Lowrance seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
There was some discussion on the Budget Retreat date. City Manager Barrick stated the Budget Retreat 
could be held on February 18th. The Council voted to accept this date. 
 
Councilmember Nicky Setzer stated there is a meeting at the WPCOG on January 24th. 
 



 

Tuesday, January 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 6 of 6 

City Manager Barrick stated he would be away on February 1, 2 and 3 at the NC City /County Manager's 
Conference. 
 
14.  ADJOURN - At 9:27 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance moved to adjourn the City Council 
meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Shawn Brown. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Respectively submitted, 
Mandy D. Buff,  
Administrative Support Clerk    
      
 
                                                                                                                      

 
____________________________ 
     David B. Morrow, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attested: 
 
 
____________________________ 
  Douglas L. Barrick, City Clerk 











M

J
F
M
A
M
J
J
A
S
O
N
D
T
 
 

N
 
 
W
W
 

 
Month 

Ca
lls
 A
ns
w
er
ed

 

January  824
February  856
March  842
April  83
May  885
June  777
July  76
August  822
September  749
October  682
November  512
December  649
Total  919

 

Noted Events:      
Capt. Gary Bost r
Sgt. Allen Long re
We were able to 
We underwent a 
 

Fe
lo
ni
es
 

M
isd

em
ea
no

rs
 

4  3  11 
6  13  38 
2  5  18 
1  5  34 
5  5  17 
7  7  25 
1  2  14 
2  2  23 
9  1  43 
2  2  64 
2  2  24 
9  5  36 
90  52  347 

   

                              
received his Adva
eceived his Interm
put two new pat
DCI Audit and pa

Ac
ci
de

nt
s P

I 

Ac
ci
de

nt
s P

D 

W
ar
ra
nt
s 

0  1  1 
0  4  6 
0  1  3 
0  6  5 
1  8  3 
2  10  3 
0  3  4 
1  10  9 
1  5  10 
1  8  10 
0  6  2 
1  5  7 
7  67  63 
     

                             
ance Certificate   
mediate Certifica
rol cars on the ro
assed with 100% 

Claremon
2011

Su
bp

oe
na
s 

O
pe

n 
Bu

sin
es
se
s

Pr
op

er
ty
 c
he

ck
 

8  13  115
11  14  112
4  21  117
11  17  114
7  20  128
2  13  109
3  21  117
3  14  128
6  20  115
13  14  105
5  12  615
1  12  945
74  191 132
     

                              
                              
te                          
oad this year.       
accuracy.             

nt Police D
1 Year in R

 

Co
ur
t H

ou
rs
 

Ci
ta
tio

ns
 

54  0  25 
23  13  43 
74  0  39 
45  12  52 
86  10  26 
97  10  31 
74  5  47 
84  4  44 
57  23  56 
54  0  70 
5  0  36 
5  0  42 
208  77  511

   

                              
                              
                              
                              
                              

Departmen
Review 

W
ar
ni
ng
s 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Es
co
rt
s  l

37  41  2
56  33  6
46  32  3
49  41  1
59  45  5
41  44  2
51  42  4
55  55  2
61  42  2
67  45  2
39  19  3
46  51  0
607  490  3
   

                              
                              
                              
                              
                              

nt 

Fu
ne

ra
l E
sc
or
ts
 

Pa
rt
‐T
im

e 
Ho

ur
s 

A
i

l

2  280  0
6  356  0
3  350  0
1  387  0
5  140  0
2  224  0
4  228  1
2  207  1
2  246  0
2  256  1
3  380  0
0  292  2
32  3346  5

Sum Total

            OCA Repo
                              
                             
                             
                             

An
im

al
s 

Im
po

un
de

d 

Ve
hi
cl
es
 

Im
po

un
de

d 

0  0 
0  3 
0  1 
0  4 
0  2 
0  0 
1  1 
1  1 
0  2 
1  3 
0  2 
2  1 
5  20 
l  28788

ort Totals: 2011    
                 2010    
                 2009    
                 2008    
                 2007   

p

Al
ar
m
 C
al
ls 

 A
ss
ist
ed

 
M
ot
or
ist
 

21  22 
23  21 
22  23 
21  17 
30  27 
29  13 
24  20 
27  16 
24  26 
14  18 
12  14 
13  24 
260 241 

8   

 218 
 185                  
  202 
  238 
  269 



 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Claremo

0

0

0

0

0

0

Incidents

144

1

ont	Police

Evidence

18

154

55

e	Departm

Arrests
Cita

109

122

ment	201

ations Warn

790

5

780

10‐2011	

nings Acciden

553

69

369

Yearly	R

2010

20

nts

9

76

Report	

011

2

2

 

010

011













2012 

ACTION PLAN  

 

 

 

City of Claremont  

“ A Progressive City dedicated to preserving small town 
values while planning for the future”  



Action Plan Outline  

 The Action Plan identifies and defines key initiatives 
and includes corresponding goals and sub goals to 
direct future actions by the City to achieve the vision 
of the plan and the overarching City mission and 
values. The plan is broken down into five key areas:  

 Parks, Recreation & Culture 

 Public Utilities 

 Technological Innovation 

 Economic Development 

 Responsive Government 

 



Parks, Recreation & Culture 

 Expand/schedule programs and other functions in 
Claremont Park 

  
 Involve citizens and youth of our community 
  
 Build on PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarship 
  
 Historical preservations  

 
 Senior citizen promotions  
 
 Expand greenways  

 



Public Utilities 

 Expand sewer capacity  

  

 Ensure availability of public utilities  

  

 Provide adequate and clean water 
distribution services  

 



Technological Innovation 

 Expand the Cities E-Profile  

  

 Technology Initiatives 

  

 Increase Wi-Fi Access  

 



Economic Development 

 Fill empty storefronts  

  

 Local Promotion of Businesses & Non-Profits 

  

 Continue Recruitment & Retention in the 
Business Park  

 



Responsive Government 

 Foster community input, involvement & 
transparency   

  

 Evaluate Organizational Effectiveness  

 



Implementation & Review  

 This Plan will be used to establish the City’s 
priorities as it undertakes new ideas or amends 
existing programs.  

 It is a proactive statement of where the City wants to 
be in the future.  

 The City Council has committed to an annual review 
of this plan to measure progress and to update the 
plan to best suit the ever evolving needs of the 
community.  



    
 

City of Claremont 

 

 

 

 

2012 
Action Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted February 6, 2012 



   

 

Mayor & City Council 

The City Councilmen of the City of Claremont pledge to create an environment in which 

the City will flourish around the concept of its mission statement and core values. The City 

Council acknowledges its role in Vision and Action Planning for the future of the City and 

pledges that this document will be a living, changing, and evolving document to help guide 

the City’s path to the future.  

 

 

 

Mayor 

David Morrow  

Councilmen 

Tim Lowrance 

Shawn Brown 

Dale Sherrill 

Nicky Setzer 

DB Setzer 

 

City Manager 

Doug Barrick 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

 

Table of Contents  

 

Executive Summary          1 

Components of the Plan  1 

City Mission & Core Values  1 

Action Plan Outline  2 

 Parks, Recreation & Culture  2 

 Public Utilities  3 

 Technological Innovation  4 

 Economic Development  4 

 Responsive Government  5 

Action Plan Matrix  6 

Implementation & Review  7 

Appendix A  

 City Council Questionnaire   8  

Major Accomplishments  10 

Issues, Concerns, & Opportunities  11 

Priorities and Programs  12 

Organizational Effectiveness  13 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    
 

Executive Summary  

In 2011 the City of Claremont initiated a strategic planning meeting known as the Mayors’ 

Planning Breakfast to develop a clear and concise action plan to guide the City towards the 

future.  The City Council along with facilitation staff from the Western Piedmont Council 

of Governments evaluated past major accomplishments, issues, organizational effectiveness, 

priorities, and concerns for the future.  These items were then used to set specific action 

points, goals, and programs to guide the City over the next several years.  The specific 

responses of each category discussed are included as appendices to this Action Plan. 

This Plan will be used to establish the City’s priorities as it undertakes new ideas or amends 

existing programs.  It is a proactive statement of where the City wants to be in the future.  

The Action Plan identifies key initiatives with corresponding goals to direct the City’s 

actions to help achieve its overarching mission while remaining in line with its values.  The 

City Council has committed to an annual review of this plan to measure progress and to 

update the plan to best suit the ever evolving needs of the community.   

 

Components of the Plan  

Mission Statement  

The City of Claremont Mission Statement describes how the community will reach its full 

potential and drives the action planning process. The Mission articulates and reflects the 

high ideals of the City as it looks to the future.  

Mission Statement 

“A progressive city dedicated to preserving small town values while planning 

for the future”  

Core Values  

The Core Values of the City describe the key attributes that are the most important to the 

City Council and the Community.  

 Effective local, regional and state partnerships 

 Excellent and Cost effective services including police, fire, rescue and public 

works. 

 Long term financial stability 

 Planned growth and economic development 

Page 1



   

 

 Fiscal accountability 

 Leisure and culture activities 

 Environmentally sensible practices 

 Citizen Involvement 

Action Plan Outline  

The Action Plan identifies and defines key initiatives and includes corresponding goals and 

sub goals to direct future actions by the City to achieve the vision of the plan and the 

overarching City mission and values. The plan is broken down into five key areas:  

 Parks, Recreation & Culture 

 Public Utilities 

 Technological Innovation 

 Economic Development 

 Responsive Government 

Each of these key areas includes goals to help give shape to each topic. The goals are the specific 

desires of the City Council over the next several years.  The goals are seen as comprehensive and 

give shape and substance to each key area of the plan. 

Parks, Recreation & Culture 

Vibrant parks and engaging programs play an important part in the overall health of our 
community. This key area defines the need to provide recreational and culture activities to meet 
the needs of all our citizens. It also indicates an approach to stewardship of the environment and 
history of the city to ensure the proper protection and development of these assets for the future.  

Goals 

Expand/schedule programs and other functions in Claremont Park 

 Increase funding and support of the Parks & Recreation Committee  

 Increase advertising and outreach for existing and future programs  

 Continue to utilize staff in developing new programs  
 

Involve citizens and youth of our community 

 Continue to build on the Youth Council  

 Increase volunteer opportunities with the City  

 Ensure that communications for opportunities are reaching the citizens  
 

 
 

Page 2



   

 

Build on PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarship 

 Foster a positive and supportive atmosphere  for the PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarship 
committee to operate  

 Seek outreach and fundraising opportunities in the community  
 

Historical preservations  

 Facilitate the collection and preservation of historical photos and documents from 
the City’s past 

 Seek ways to preserve the legacy of the City including buildings, documents, oral 
histories and traditions 
 

Senior citizen promotions  

 Increase volunteer opportunities with the City  

 Seek ways to connect retired citizens with opportunities provided in the community 
 

Expand greenways  

 Create a master plan of sidewalk and greenway connections within the City  

 Seek partnerships and grants to implement the construction of the plan 
 

Public Utilities 

High quality public utilities that reach the entire city not only ensures environmental protection, 
but the resources for future growth. This key area reinforces the cities desires to provide 
excellent cost effective services to all citizens of the community both residential and commercial.  

Goals  

Expand sewer capacity  

 Seek regional partnerships that will provide long term ability to provide sewer 
services at the most competitive rates 

 Evaluate the current and future needs for sewer capacity in the City’s service area 
 

Ensure availability of public utilities  

 Inventory all  existing water and sewer lines and establish the current service area  

 Examine the current service areas ability to expand  

 Begin estimating and planning for expansion of existing under serviced developments  
 
Provide adequate and clean water distribution services  

 Continue partnerships for the delivery of water to the city  

 Develop strategies to ensure potable water during times of critical need  

 Ensure a commitment to proactive maintenance and upkeep of infrastructure 
 
 

Page 3



   

 

Technological Innovation 

In order to ensure that the City provides the most cost effective services, the use of the most 
advanced technology should be used to help achieve the goals of this key area. The use of 
technology also furthers the City’s e-profile for future growth and citizen transparency.  

Goals  

Expand the Cities E-Profile  

 Become more current on E-Commerce and Internet visibility.   

 Examine the ability for City Services to be paid On-Line.   

 Begin Direct Deposit for payroll 

 Expand upon the use of  electronic media  
 

Technology Initiatives 

 Evaluate the all ways to incorporate advances into City processes and implement the 
most cost effective alternatives  

 Examine trends in government innovation to seek out new technology options  

 Begin to review and gather ideas from other governments on how they are using 
technology to streamline processes 

 Seek partnerships to expand the current use of technology 

 Evaluate and implement ways to become a paperless organization  
 
Increase Wi-Fi Access  

 Develop free Wi-Fi access in the downtown area 

 Build Wi-Fi Connections at all public buildings 

 Look for ways to expand upon these initial connections  
 

Economic Development 

This key area includes the retention of existing businesses, attracting new businesses, and 
encouraging the creation of quality jobs for the community. In doing so the City must also strive 
to foster, support and retain a diverse economic base, to continue long term financial stability 
and planned growth.  

Goals  

Fill empty storefronts  

 Develop a report of the Claremont market area and profile  

 Seek stores, NOT BIG BOX, that would fit our Market 

 Promote the area through national and local brands   
 
 

Page 4



   

 

Local Promotion of Businesses & Non-Profits 

 Continue to host Business Breakfasts  

 Seek ways to incorporate local businesses into City events and promotions  

 Ensure education of existing opportunities and programs for all aspects of businesses 
and nonprofit operations 

 
Continue Recruitment & Retention in the Business Park  

 Build on the relationship with the EDC and existing park partners 

 Ensure the park meets the needs of the tenants and is easily marketable  

 Look for ways to expand the park and to reuse/recycle existing vacant buildings  
 

Responsive Government 

This key area describes the City’s responsibility to manage in a manner which seeks to be 
responsive to the community and accountable for actions taken. It also seeks to maintain effective 
operational standards that will equate to effective delivery of services. This area also seeks to 
assure that the appropriate services are provided in a manner that reflect both the needs of the 
community and the ability of the City to provide them.  
 

Goals  

 

Foster community input, involvement & transparency   

 Have Semi-Annual Town Hall Meetings so the Mayor & Council can hear from 
Citizens  

 Initiate “Claremont City Government 101” 

 Ensure availability of city documents, policies and ordinances are easily attainable  

 Continue the use of city newsletters and surveys to enhance feedback and 
information delivery 

 
Evaluate Organizational Effectiveness  
  

 Review all city policies and ordinances and ensure they are upheld, updated and 
enforced   

 Improve staff opportunities for professional development and networking  

 Allow for pre council meetings for educational topics and round table discussions 
with staff and outside agencies  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Goals Key Area Time Frame Lead Department Status 

Fill Empty Storefronts Economic Development 0-2 Adminstration Not Started 

Local Promotion of Businesses & Non-Profits Economic Development 0-2 Adminstration Ongoing 

Continue Recruitment & Retention in the Business Park Economic Development 1-5 Adminstration Ongoing 

PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarship Fund Parks & Recreation 0-1 Adminstration Not Started 

Senior Citizen Promotions Parks & Recreation 0-2 Parks & Recreation Not Started 

Expand Parks Programming Parks & Recreation 1-3 Parks & Recreation Not Started 

Historical Preservations Parks & Recreation 1-5 Adminstration Started 

Expand Greenways Parks & Recreation 1-5 Parks & Recreation Started 

Involve Citizens & Youth of the community Parks & Recreation 3-5 Parks & Recreation Started 

Expand Sewer Capacity Public Utilities 0-1 Adminstration Started 

Ensure availability of public utilities Public Utilities 0-1 Public Works Started 

Provide adequate and clean water distribution Public Utilities 1-5 Public Works Started 

Evaluate Organizational Effectiveness Responsive Government 0-2 Adminstration Not Started 

Foster community input, involvement, & transparency Responsive Government 0-5 Adminstration Not Started 

Increase Wi-Fi Access Technological Innovation 0-1 Adminstration Started 

Technology Initiatives Technological Innovation 0-2 Adminstration Not Started 

Expand the Cities E-Profile Technological Innovation 1-5 Adminstration Started 

City of Claremont Action Plan Matrix 

Page 6



   

 

Implementation  

Plan implementation will be dependent both on the City Staff and the City Council to take 
action on the recommendations contained in this report. Staff has the responsibility to take 
on these goals as a part of the operations of the City and the City Council must reinforce the 
desire and need for these actions to occur. The Staff and City Council must also be willing 
to update and review progress on these action points throughout the year along with a 
holistic annual review prior to the beginning of the budgeting process to ensure alignment 
of priorities and funding.  
 
 

Appendix A   

 
The Appendix includes the questionnaire used by the City Council to construct the 
framework of the discussions behind the formulation of this action plan and the 
resulting answers compiled to each question 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



   

 

 

CITY OF CLAREMONT  

GOAL SETTING SESSION – 2011 

QUESTIONNAIRE 

INTRODUCTION  

The City of Claremont’s Goal Setting Session will be held on Saturday, December 10, 2011 at 

the Claremont Fire Department. The purpose of the session will be to identify and prioritize the 

City’s overall goals and objectives for the next two to five years. 

In order to prepare for this session, you are requested to identify key issues and potential 

objectives that will be reviewed and discussed at the session. Please complete all sections 

of this questionnaire. If you need additional space, please feel free to attach additional page(s). 

Major Accomplishments 

Please list the major city accomplishments over the past two years. These accomplishments 

could be as large as a street project or as simple as a newly adopted city policy. The items do not 

need to be in any particular order. 

Issues, Concerns, Trends, and Opportunities 

Please list specific issues, concerns, trends, and opportunities that affect future city 

services, policies, finances or operations. You do not need to identify potential 

solutions to your concerns 

 

Page 8



   

 

Significant Initiatives or Programs 

Please list any initiatives, programs or policies that you think the City should consider in the 

next two years. 

Organizational Effectiveness 

Please list several things that the Mayor/City Council and/or staff could do in the future to 

improve organizational effectiveness, decision-making process, teamwork and the ability to 

accomplish the City’s stated goals and objectives. 

RETURN OF QUESTIONNAIRE 

Please return this questionnaire to Doug Barrick by Monday December 5
th

 . 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



   
 

Major Accomplishments 

• Overall growth in a very controlled/organized manner 

• Planned Expansion of Phase II Business Park 

• Additions in our Business Park/New Business Partners  

• “One Team” of all Departments working together 

• Proactive EDC at Local Level and in the County 

• Business Networking Breakfast 

• Securing a Great, Forward Thinking Person for City Manager* 

• Much Improved communication & Involvement from City Manager’s Office*  

• Encouragement from City Manager for Downtown Redevelopment to Building 
Owners 

• Downtown Upgrades/Beautification  

• Being able to promote “City Government” as a Business Partner* 

• Completion of Rail Spur 

• Infrastructure Support-City of Hickory, Public Works Training 

• Public Works Equipment Expansion/Budget Alignment 

• Baker Street Water line upgrade 

• Identifying Traffic Issues/Re-Routing Truck Traffic, Securing Signage for Bypass 
Route** 

• Disposal of Surplus Property 

• Promoting Events year round 

– Yard Sale 

– Claremont Day 

– Christmas Parade 

• Staying within Proposed Operating Budget*  

• Updating Personnel Policy/Handbook*  

• New Businesses: * 

– Claremont Florist 

– O’Cup  

– Sheer Bliss Salon 

– St. Marks 

– Quilting Mission 

– Claremont Hardware 

– Williams & Sonoma 
 

*Response given by more than one person 

Page 10



   
 

Issues, Concerns, Trends and Opportunities 

• Continued Financial Stability 

• Continued Citizen Support (The Best in Years)  

• How to Attract New Business/Industry (Opportunity) 

• City Waste Water Treatment infrastructure issue has to be resolved to allow for 
future industrial growth*  

• Electronic Payment Options/Direct Deposit 

• Infrastructure Expansion Update (Concern) 

• City Ordinances – Revisit to see if all are Current, Being Upheld and Enforced. 

• More Sidewalks in Heavy Travel Areas 

• The Slow Economic Recovery 

• Apply for Grants 

• Unoccupied Store Fronts in Downtown Area, as well as Commercial & Industrial 
Property & Residential (Estate & Rental) properties.**  

• Identify other things to attract people to Claremont: 

• Arts & Crafts 

• Senior Citizen Living Areas  

• Attract more young people  

• Examine the needs for a Community Center 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Response given by more than one person 

Page 11



   
 

Significant Initiatives or Programs 

• Parks & Recreation Committee : 

• Expand/Schedule Programs and other functions in Claremont Park 

• Involve Citizens and Youth of our Community 

• Build on PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarship 

• Historical Preservations – Photo Gallery 

• Partnership with County on Sewer Project/Upgrades  

• Become more current on E-Commerce and Internet visibility.  The updated version 
of the website is a great step in beginning that initiative.  Allow for City Services 
(specifically Water Bills) to be paid On-Line.  Also change to Direct Deposit for all 
City employees pay, moving us forward in how we conduct business and will also 
save money long term.* 

• Our outward image through electronic media needs to be very forward thinking and 
advanced.  We need a “Technology Initiative” to keep us on the cusp of future 
development and to share this vision with the citizens. 

• Make Sewer Services available to all City homes (finish the streets that are unserved)  

• Develop Free Wi-Fi access in the Downtown area*  

• Local Promotion of Businesses & Non-Profits 

• Senior Citizen Promotions – Other than Breakfast 

• Seek Other Commercial Type Stores, NOT BIG BOX, that would fit our Market and 
find tenants for existing storefronts*  

• Identify our Market Area, a 15 mile radius includes ???, Hickory & Statesville 

• Initiate “Claremont City Government 101” 

• Have Semi-Annual Town Hall Meetings so the Mayor & Council can hear from 
Citizens  

• Staff should Complete or Begin NIMS Training  

• Expand Greenways  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Response given by more than one person 

Page 12



   
 

Organizational Effectiveness 

 

• Bring back the“Before Council Meeting Meeting” – this is when Council Members, 
City Manager, & Department Heads meet at the department location to inspect 
/discuss improvements, etc.  This shows that we care!   

• Continue the new efforts of City Manager & Staff of communications and organized 
work efforts 

• Currently Better Run than Ever…Great Job and “Hats Off” to Doug and Staff!  

• Periodic “Round Table” meetings as listed above including city hall staff as well. 

• Electronic Notepad or Laptop Computer instead of Printing Agendas* 

• Learning & Networking with people from other cities & states is critical to our 
growth as leaders within Claremont.  The city should support and encourage council 
& staff taking classes at the local, state & national level to expand their knowledge & 
grow in their individual roles. 

• Wi-Fi Connections or Computer Access to all Public Buildings, including Public 
Works 

• Strive to make everything “Paperless”* 

• Consent Agendas 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Response given by more than one person 

 

Page 13





 
CLAREMONT FIRE DEPARTMENT 

2850 FIRE HOUSE LANE 
CLAREMONT, NC 28610 

828/459-9296 FAX 828/459-9732 
 
The Claremont Fire Department responded to 13 calls for the month of January 2012 
 (Jan1 – Jan 20) 
 
Man hours spent on fire calls for the month totaled 47.84. 
 
Average member response to calls, 8 this month and 8 for the year. 
 
Average response time to calls 3 min. 27 seconds till the first engine was on the scene. 
 
Training for the month totaled 72 hours for the department. 
 
There were 1 business inspections, 1 re‐inspection, no safety inspection, no plan review and no 
pre plan completed for the month. 
 
The Fire Prevention Office performed 7 programs this month, installed 8 smoke detectors, 
replaced 3 smoke detector batteries and performed no child safety seat inspections.  

_______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectively submitted, 
 
Gary W. Sigmon, Chief 

 



 
     Claremont Police Department 

Monthly Service 
January 2012 

 
Calls Answered 856 Court Hours 4 
Felonious Crimes                     1 Citations to Court                 40 
Misdemeanor    20 Warnings                 62 
Accidents (PI)      2 Business Escorts                 52 
Accidents (PD)                     4 Funeral Escorts 0 
Warrants for Arrest                     2 Vehicles Impounded 5 
Subpoenas Served                     2 Assisted Motorist 28 
Open Businesses                     9 Alarms Answered 17 
Property Checks               1115 Part-Time hours            272.25 
Animal Calls   3   

 
Noted Events during the Month 

 
1. Sgt. Long made two arrest for shoplifting at Lowes Foods 
2. Officer Martin made one arrest for Second Degree Trespassing on Catawba St.  
3. Officer Russell is investigating a possible Breaking and Entering at a residence off 

of Cloninger St.                                                                                             
 
 

                                 Respectfully Submitted 
                                                                                                                 Gerald R. Tolbert 

Chief of Police 
                                                                                                          

                  




















